Dear Brother:
Please accept a copy of the History and Directory of one

ofthe oldest Churches on the Pacific Coast. We hope you will be inter-
ested in its perusal.

This gives us an oppoartunity to mention, that persons coming to this
country too often omit bringiag their Church Letters and placing them
in their new home, resulting in great loss to themselves and the cause of
w.hrist. To faciliate the transition, we dasire to say, that Church Letters
or letters of introduction from you, presented to us by any of the members
of your church or congregation, will insure them a brotherly welcome;
and a separate letter of explanation from you, may enable us to find them
immediately on arrival. The first reception in the ““wild’’ west is exceed-
ingly influential, often ‘‘setting the future'’ for the recipient. In view of
this, duty to God and our fellowmen admonishes us, to extend prompt
Christian fellowship to those coming amongz us, thus striving to preserve
or win them for Christ who hath need of them; and the Christian letter
proves an excellent introduction, from the old to the new friends, among
the people of God.

That the fruits of the Spirit may continue unto you and your people,
in increasing measure, is the fervent prayer of your berthren in Christ.

_______________________________________ Pastor.
W. B. GILBERT, E. QUACKENBUSH,
WM. M, LADD, A. W, STOWELL,
S. P. LEE, R. K. WARREN,

Session.
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In the preparation of this manual, the first issued by the church, the
committce have exercised great care,and yet errors will doubtless be
found, owing to constant changes of residence, of which the Session is
not advised. Permit us to suggest that all changes of residence be
promptly sent to the Pastor, or Clerk of the Session, giving full address.

Printed slips of new members will be furnished after each commun-
ion, which may be pasted on the blank pages in the back of this book.

E. QUACKENBUSH,

W. B. GILBERT,

J. THORBURN ROSS,

Rev. A. J. BRowN, Pastor,
Committee.






F.ven as Christ also loved the church, and gave himself forit; That he might
sanctify and cleanse it with the washing of water by the word, That he might pre-
sent it to himself a glorious ¢church, not having spot, or wrinkle, or any such
thing; but that it should be holy and without blemish.—IPHESIANS 5:25, 26, 27.

HISTORICHL.

" Through several recent and excellent essays we were made quite fa-
miliar with the earlier history of our church; still it is deemed best to
record in our first formal church manual some of these and other facts
‘‘ made precious by the passing years.”’

At the meeting of the Presbytery of Oregon, in Portland, on Octo-
ber 3d, 1853, a ypetition from certain persons for the organization of a
church in Portland was reccived and considered. The request was
granted, and Rev. J. L. Yantis, D. D., who had preached for them a part
of the time for some months, was appointed to preside and organize the
proposed church.

In the evenings of December 30th and 31st, 1853, Dr. Yantis preached
in Portland, and the following day, Sabbath, January 1st, 1854, after
preaching from Luke 12: 32— Fear not, little flock’’—the First Presby-
terian Church of Portland was constituled and organized, with twelve
members, and the election of Wm. P. Abrams and Jam«s McKeown «
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elders. In these services Dr. Yantis was assisted by Rev. George F.
Whitworth, who had recently arrived in Oregon, and who supplied the
Portland church for two months, going hence to Olympia, on Puget
Sound.

On May 1st, 1854, Dr. Yantis reported the organization, and the
church was taken under the care of Presbytery and enrolled as ‘‘ The
First Presbyterian Church in Portland.”” Such was the first organized
Presbyterianism in Portland, Oregon Territory.

We may be pardoned if we digress for a moment to show its Pres-
byteral and Synodic relationship. The Presbytery of Oregon was
organized at Lafayette, Yamhill county, on November 19th, 1851, and
it was dedicated in the following words of consecration and unmeasured
faith in the ‘‘ Head of the Church :”’

“ WHEREAS, It has pleased God, in his divine mercy and good-
ness, through many perils by land and sea, to bring us safely to this new
distant and difficult, yet interesting field of labor, and has permitted us
to meet this day in health and peace, and constitute ocurselves into
a Presbytery; therefore—

“ Resolved—1. That the tender mercies of God to usward are grate-
fully acknowledged.

‘2, That we recognize these mercies as placing us under new and
peculiar obligations to devote our lives to the work of the ministry, and
as encouraging us to expect the Divine blessing on our labors.

3. That we feel deeply sensible of the existence of many and try-
ing difficulties in our field of labor, and entire insufficiency as of our
selves, for the encumbent duties ; that the best and most wisely directed
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means are in vain, without the Divine blessing ; and that we do, there-
fore, humbly and earnestly invoke the presence of the Holy Spirit, to
direct and sustain us in our efforts to advance the Redeemer’s Kingdom
in Oregon.’’

Its founders were Rev. Lewis Thompson, of the Presbytery of Mis-
souri, now living in Oakland, Cal., Rev. Edward R. Geary, of the
Presbytery of Coshocton, Ohie, deceased September 1st, 1886, and Rev.
Robert Robe, of the Presbytery of Zanesville, Ohio, still preaching at
Brownsville, Oregon, where he has been for twenty-three years.

The three churches first enrolled under the care of the Presbytery
of Oregon were—

The Church of Clatsop Plains, on November 19th, 1851.

The Church of Marysville (now Corvallis), on October 1st, 1853.

And the First Presbyterian Church of Portland, on May Ist, 1854.

Other church sccieties existed, but for some reason were not enrolled
until later.

The Church of Clatsop Plains was organized on September 19th,
1846, by Rev. Lewis Thompson, AND WAS THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN
CHURCH ON THE PAcCIric CoAsT.

The Synod of the Pacific was organized in San Francisco, Cal.,
in the year 1853; the Presbytery of Oregon, reprcsented by Rev. Robert
Robe, completing the constitutional number of Presbyteries necessary
to constitute a Synod, and with this Synod our Presbytery was identi-

fied until the organization of the Synod of the Columbia, in October,
1876.

When the church at Portland was organized it was exy.ected that
Dr. Yantis would be its permanent pastor; meanwhile, his services were



6

equally divided between the Portland Church and the Church of the
Calipooia, his previous charge near his home in Linn county, 80 miles
from Portland, whither he journeyed on horseback, twice each month,
punctually, until an affection of the eyes compelled him to give up
the Portland work. After this the church had only occasional preach-
ing, and finally passed into a state of suspense. Presbytery, however,
recognized its entity by mentioning it iu each year's proceedings; and
at its meeting in Eugene City, April 29th, 1859, Rev. H. R. Avery was
appointed to supply the church in Portland on the 4th Sabbath in May,
1859, and to make report thereof at the next stated meeting of the Pres-
bytery. The next meeting of the Presbytery was held at St. Helens,
September, 8th, 1859, at which Mr. Avery reported that ‘‘2e found Port-
land an interesting field of ministerial effort.”’

During the fall of 1859, a meeting of Presbyterians resulted in an
$800 subseription toward ministerial supply for one year, and a request
therefor was sent to the Board of Home Missions ; the Board promptly
responded by sending Mr. Philip 8. Caffrey, arecent graduate of Prince-
ton, who reached Portland on June 4th, 1860, engaging at once in his
work and preaching his first sermo= on Sabbath, June 17th, 1860.

On August 3d or 4th, 1860, Rev. Liouis Thompson, of Clatsop, orgau-
ized seventeen persons into a church, who elected as ruling elders,
Smith M. Hensill, Israel Mitchell and James McKeown (who was
elected and ordained a Ruling Elder at the first organization.) At its
meeting, September 7th, 1860, the Presbytery received the church and
mentioned it in its records as the ‘“ Portland church reorganized.”’

Owing to its considerable period of desuetude, the question may
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arise: Were the organizations of 1854 and 1860 sufficiently coherent to
establish the continuity of the church from its first inception ?

On January 1st, 1854, James McKeown was elected and ordained a
ruling elder in the First Presbyterian Church in Portland, and the
church was duly enrolled by Presbytery. In August, 1860, Mr. Mc-
Keown being present, was again chosen an elder, thus participating in
both organizations, and without any intervening act of renunciation by
either Mr. McKeown, the church or Presbytery.

It would seem, therefore, under our church polity, that the first or-
ganization was preserved and transmitted by Elder McKeown, and the
action of August, 1860, was simply a resumption. This position is in-
cidentally strengthened by the following facts: The original name was
continued, and after its reception in 1854, Presbytery referred to the
Portland church every year in its records, and sent a minister to preach
for the church in the summer of 1859, and finally; at its meeting in Sep-
tember, 1860, received the church as the ‘‘ Portland church reorganized.”
Under similar conditions, the Presbytery doubtless at the present time,
would regard the reorganization as a resuscitation. Hence, we can rea-
sonably assume THAT THIS CHURCH ORIGINATED ON JANUARY 1st, 1854.

Mr. Caffrey was taken under the care of Presbytery, ordained sine
titulo to the gospel ministry, and assigned to the Portland church on
September 7th and 8th, 1860. With slight intermission, the Rev. P. S.
Caffrey continued as stated supply to this church until January 1st, 1867,
serving the church with faithfulness and ability, six and one¢-half years,
when failing health necessitated a change.

The first board of trustees was elected on August 20th, 1869, and
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consisted of W. 8. Ladd, J. C. Ainsworth, H. A. Hogue, J. M. Blossom

and B. F. Smith.
The comparatively small sum received from the Home Board, indi-

cates that the resuscitated church possessed unwonted vigor. Aid was
sought only as follows :

For year ending June, 1861.......ccccoviviiiiiiiiiiiienininnnn $400 00
o “ o 1862 it cvreees reieieee s 300 00
e “ A £ SOOI PP 200 00
oo ¢ R £ 1< SRS 200 00

Total. oo s e $1,100 00

And the church became self-supporting on June 17th, 1864, building
meanwhile—for that time—a remarkably fine house of worship; and
from the very beginning it has been a zealous and increasing supporter
of all mission work, and, indeed, of every worthy object.

Brevity admonishes us to pass rapidly amid these historic scenes,
and leave you, dear reader, to weave into our coarse fabric of current
events, the golden threads of loving ministries, self-denial and * patient
waiting in well doing,” so manifest in all of the early Christian bands.

In the summer of 1862, the lots on the corner of Third and Wash-
ington streets were purchased for $1,500; plans for the church thereon
were adopted March 7th, 1863, the contract for building was let on April
15th, 1863, for $9,500. The total cost of lots, building and furnishing is said
to have been about $20,000. The ladies furnished the church and paid
for the lots at a cost of about $3,500. Their’s was phenomenal work and
success ; the right royal, alphabetical and other entertainments they
gave are still recalled and praised by the people who attended them.
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On May 12th, 1864, Mrs. H. W. Corbett, whom many still re-
member, presented the church bell, and for a quarter of a century, in
fones many times joyful and often sad, it has called the people to prayer
and praise. The manufacturer of this bell said ‘it was cast from bells
and cannon captured during the civil war;”’ and not long after, from its
new place in the church tower, instead of death-dealing missiles, the
old metal recast, sent forth in holier tones, the joyful news of pea?ze re-
stored and the Union preserved. Upon it also devolved the melancholy
duty of announcing the tragic death of the immortal Lincoln. Yes;
we will preserve the old bell because of the hallowed memories which
cluster about it.

The church was dedicated on May 22d, 1864. The Rev. George H. At-
kinson preached the sermon, and the pastor conducted the other exer-

cises.
On October 23d, 1865, the society was duly incorporated as ‘“The

First Presbyterian Church and Soeiety of the City of Portland,”’ by
Messrs. W. S. Ladd, J. C. Ainsworth, O. P. S. Plummer, J. D. Holman
and M. B. Millard. The value of the property then owned by the so-
ciety was $25,000.

After the close of Mr. Caffrey’s labors, January 1st, 1867, the church
remained one year and eight months without a pastor or stated supply.

On Aug. 6, 1867, a call was extended Rev. A. L. Lindsley, D. D.,
South Salem, N. Y., which he at first declined ; but was finally pre-
vailed upon to visit the field, and arrived in Portland on July 31st, 1868.
He found an acceptable church and entered at once into its work. His
installation, which occurred on April 25th, 1869, made him the first reg-
ular pastor of the church. He found the church with eighty-seven
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members; seven hundred and forty were received during his ministry,
and he left an AcTivE membership of over three hundred. His sympa-
thies were actively enlisted in every good cause, and all worthy men
and measures received his encouragement and support. His mission
work was pre-eminently successful. While pastor of this church he organ-
ized twenty-one churches and dedicated twenty-two. All the Indian
misstons were the objects of his fostering care; indeed, he may properly
be regarded as the father of Presbyterian-Indian missions in the North-
west, including the Alaskans, Nez Perces, Puyallups, Umatillas, Spo-
kanes and others. We can never correctly estimate the value of his
work, so varied was its character and so wide the field : but we do know
that he labored for Christ, the Head of the Church, with remarkable
singleness of purpose, zeal and ability. His long pastorate of over
eighteen years in this church enabled him to gather and enjoy much of
the fruit of his labor in his own church and in the wider field of his
Christian usefulness. The gifts of.the church, for all purposes, during
his pastorate are recorded as over $240,000. His was, indeed, a fruitful
ministry, and he a living epistle known and read of all men. His elec-
tion to the chair of Practical Theology in the San IFrancisco Seminary
led to his resignation as pastor of this church, and his farewell sermon
was preached on November 21st, 1886.

‘We desire to make grateful mention of Rev. Thomas Frazar, of
California, for his many kindnesses and valuable aid to our church. His
occasional visits during the past twenty years were greatly enjoyed, and
his pulpit ministrations were very instructive and influential. His
many friends in this church hold him in affectionate esteem.
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This was the only Presbyterian church in Portland and vicinity un-
til early in 1882, when it became apparent that other churches were
necessary to secure the best results.

On February 12th, 1882, the following action was taken by the
Session of this church:

“WHEREAS, Efforts have been made in this congregation for
sometime past for propagating the cause of Christ by forming new or-
ganizations, and opportunity seems now offered for organizing a second
church in Portland, and believirg another church will materially bene-
fit and advance the cause of Christ in our midst ; therefore, be it—

“Resolved, By the Session of the First Presbyterian Church of
Portland, that the proposition to establish a second Presbyterian
church in this city meets with our approval, and we do heartily com-
mend the enterprise to the members of our church and congregation,
and hereby tender our aid in any way that may be desired, earnestly
praying that abundant prosperity may attend the new member in the
Household of Faith. :

“‘ Resolved, That a petition be prepared by the Session for circulation
for the formation of a second church.”

Such a petition was prepared and circulated, and on February 19th,
1882, it was presented at a meeting of Session, with fifty signatures ask-
ing to be dismissed for the purpose mentioned. The request was consid-
ered, and being found in due form, it was unanimously—

‘““ Resolved, That the petition be granted, and that a joint letter be

given to petitioners dismissing them from this church, for the purpose
of organizing a second Presbyterian church in this city.”
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Such was the beginning of Calvary Church, and its excellent rec-
ord in all church work proves the wisdom of its formation.

On June 15th, 1882, a petition was presented requesting the Session
to aid in effecting a church organization at Union Ridge, W. T., and
seven of our members were dismissed to take part in the organization.

On September 15th, 1882, a similar petition came to the Session for
a church at East Portland, and nineteen of our members were dismissed
to aid in forming a Presbyterian church in that city.

On November 6th, 1884, thirteen members were dismissed to organ-
ize the St. John’s Presbyterian church in North Portland.

The Presbyterian churches of Albina, Sellwood, the Fourth in
South Portland, and Mizpah in Stephens’ addition to East Portland,
followed rapidly, and where recently but one existed, eight churches are
now doing effective work; and to this remarkable development the old
church has been able to con tributé‘ {o a considerable extent, in both mem-
bership and means, and we unceasingly rejoice in the increasing strength
and usefulness of all the membersin our confraternity.

As early as 1881 the advisability of selling the old church property
and building elsewhere was discussed, and in October of that year the
north half of Park b'ock 6, corner of Taylor and East Park, was pur-
chased for that purpose. The location was afterward objected to as being
too near to Calvary Church and that property was subsequently dis-
posed of. In May, 1883, the quarter block now occupied by the new
church, on the corner of Alder and Tenth streets, was bought for $10,-
000. In January, 1886, the church and congregation authorized the
trustees to dispose of the old church property. This action was further
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confirmed in February, 1886, and on the first of April of that year the
property was sold at public auction for $68,000.

The quarter block on Tenth and Alder being insufficient, the par-
sonage property adjoining it was bought in April, 1886, for $13,000. In
the same month a meeting of the church and congregation formally
decided to build the new church on the new site, and a building com-
mittee was appointed to procure plansto be submitted to the church and
congregation. Mr. W. I. McCaw was chosen as architect, and the
plans were submitted and adopted in July, 1886. It was decided to

build a stone church, the total cost of which, including furnishings,
will be about $125,000.

The chapel of the new church is now finished with a seating capac-

ity of 563. The main church will be ready for dedication sometime
next winter. |

The six-years’ term eldership in this church was adopted on April
24th, 1876, under which two elders were elected every two years.

On May 4th, 1888, this was changed to the three years’ term to con-
form to the deliverance of the General Assembly. The next election will
occur in April, 1890.

On December 30th, 1884, the ‘‘Order of Deaconesses’’ was established.
At first there were but five, now there are ten, and they have become an
indispensable auxiliary. They have a wide range of duties. Their ser-
vices, while necessarily unostentatious, are exceedingly helpful to the
pastor and useful to the church. We heartily commend the appoint-
ment of deaconesses to all city churches.

The sympathies of this church have always been actively enlisted
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in behalf of the men of the ses, and the Portland Seamen’s Friend So-
ciety bas found it from the very first one of its chief supporters, and we
are pledged to a more active participation in this work than ever be-
fore.

The ‘‘Bethany Mission,”” organized in August last, and maintained
in the old Seamen’s Bethel, corner Third and D strects, has not assumed
the position of strength and importance which the location warrants.
More vigorous work has been projected, and its growth and usefulness
will be enhanced, w hen this congregation shall have removed to the
new church building. Bethany Mission is destined to be one of the
most important branches of our church work.

Dr. Lindsley’s resignation and removal to California to engage in
his new duties, left our church without a pastor, and so it continued for
nearly eighteen months; meanwhile, the Presbyterian pastors in and
about the city kindly aided us by preaching and otherwise as their own
church duties would permit.

Rev. R. B. Dilworth supplied our pulpit very acceptably for nine
months from January 1st, 1887. His excellent discourses will long be
remembered, and here he will always find a cordial welcome.

Cn December 10th, 1886, the congregation appointed a committee,
with full power to select and engage a pastor. Many names were sug-
gested and carefully considered. No overtures were made, however,
until January, 1888, when our present pastor was introduced to us by
Rev. Herrick Johnson, D. D., through Dr. Lindsley, who cordially
endorsed him. Correspondence with Dr. Johnson quickly changed a
favorable impression to conviction ; a congregational meeting was held,
and a unanimous call was extended Rev. Arthur J. Brown, Oak Park,
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I1l., on January 26, 1888. In response, Mr. Brown visited Portland,
and we became acquainted. After his return to Chicago, the congre-
gation again convened on Monday, February 27th, 1888, when the
previous call was reiterated by a unanimous vote.

Upon due consideration, Mr. Brown accepted the pastorate on
March 5, 1888, and arrived in Portland on Saturday, April 7, 1888,
preaching his first sermon as pastor elect on the following day. Pres-

byteral action was at once sought, and on Wednesday, May 9, 1858, Mr.
Brown was duly installed pastor of the church.

Dr. Lindsley preached the sermion, and Reverends Wm. Morrison,
E. W. Brown, J. V. Milligan, W. S. Holt, Thomas Boyd, Donald Ross,
W. H. Landon, D. D., R. Gilpin and W. O. Forbes assisted in the ser-
vices, rendering the occasion one of unusual interest.

Our pastor’s faithful labors for the year have been richly blessed.
The outward symbols are largely attended services, an added member-
ship of sixty-two by letters from other churches, and eighty-seven on
confession of their faith in the Lord Jesus Christ, and by gifts for all pur-
poses of §76,523.25.

The condition of the church is exceedingly gratifying. Affection, de-
votion, benevolence, harmony and hearty co-operation are manifested
in all of its work.

Let none be satisfied, however, with present attainments, but with
devout thankfulness for blessings possessed, strive after better things
and unceasingly *‘ press toward the mark, for the prize of the high call-
ing of God, in Christ Jesus.”’



16

THE SESSION’'S ANNUAL REPORT TO THE PRESBYTERY.

APRIL, 1889.

Number of members added on examination........... .....ovieiiininen S7
Number of members added on certificate ....................... 62
Present number of communicants.................. s e 404
Baptisms of adults...... .. 29
Baptisms of Infants....cccoooiii i i 10
Sabbath School membership........cccoooviiiiiiiii 214
Students of the ministry under care of the Church....................... 2

FUNDS CONTRIBUTED.

To Home MISSIONS...c.cct viiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiren coreteaersenareiereeenen, S 5,249 00
To Foreign MiSSiONS . .ociuiiiiiiiieiie i e eaeae e 2,187 00
J NI 0 11 U 17 () s U PN 191 00
To Sabbath School WOrK ....cc.oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieceee e 53 00
To Church Extension...........cc.coceenen ... et ree e e er it s eaaanans 2,164 00
To Ministerial Relief ‘‘ Centenary Fund” ............................. 1,394 00
TOo Freedmen.......coveiiiiiiiiiiiiii it e 159 00
To Sustentation or Synodical Aid ....cccceeieniiiiiiiiiiiniinniin. 7 00
TO Aid fOr ColleZeS .ccuvniiinieiit e ettt eeeeeenens 78 00
To General Assembly......ccoouvviiiiriiiiiiiiiiiii e e 105 25
To Congregational ..........cccovrviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriii e, 54,680 00
To Miscellaneous...........c.coceevvneneeninrns weee o eresaeseeseesateeienenanns 10,256 00

Total......cooiviiiiiiiiiiiiien, $76,5623 25
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CHURCH OFFICERS, SABBATH SCHOOL, 50CI-
ETIES AND COMMITTEES,

THE CHURCH YEAR BEGINS APRIL FIRGT.

PASTORS.

To whom God would make known, what is the riches of the glory of this mys-
tery among the Gentiles; which is Christ in you, the hope of glory:

Whom we preach, warning every man, and teaching every man in all wisdom
that we may present every man perfect in Christ Jesus.—(OL. 1:27, 28,

REvV. PHiLip S. CAFFREY, - - - - - - Stated Supply,
With slight intermission, from June 17, 1860, to January 1, 1867.

Rev. A. L. LLiNpsLEY, D. D.,, LL. D., .- - - - - Pastor,
From August 1, 1868, to November 21, 1886.

REV. ARTHUR J. BROWNX, - - - - - - - = Pastor,
April 7, 1888--in charge.
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And, behold, I come quickly; and my reward is with me, to give every man
according as his work shall be.—~REV. 22:12. :

ELDER EMERITUS.

JAMES McKrowN, - - April 24, 1876, to decease, April 2, 1882,

RULING ELDERS,

DATE OF ELECTION AND EXPIRATION OF SERVICE.

JaxMEs McKEowN—January 1, 1854, at first organization ; August 3, 1860,
upon recrganization of the church, and served until April 24, 1876.

WiLLiaM P. ABgaMs—January 1, 1854, at first organization ; re-elected
March 31, 18f2, and served to decease, November 26, 1873.

ISRAEL MITCHELL, - Aug. 3, 1860, to Oct., 1872. Died Nov. 8, 1873.
SMmIiTH M. HENSILL, - August 3, 1860, to about October 1, 1864.
RoBERT A. CLARK, - - -  March 12, 1863, to March 12, 1869.
JAMES D. HoLMAN, -  March 12, 1863, to decease, December 19, 1882.

GEN. E. B. BABBITT—Feb. 14, 1867, to March 15, 1868; Jan. 2, 1870, to
decease, December 10, 1881,

J. M. BLoOMFIELD, - February 14, 1867, to decease, November 22, 1871.

WiLLiaM WADHAMS, - February 14, 1867, to February 19, 1882.

RULING ELDERS,

NOW SERVING AND DATE OF FIRST ELECTION.

RovAL K. WARREN-Feb. 14, 1867, to Nov. 8, 1867 ; re-elected Nov.11, 1880.

WiLLiaM B. GILBERT, - - - - - - April 26, 1876.
STEPHEN P. LEg, - - - - - - - - April 26, 18786.
EDWARD QUACKENBUSH, - - - - - - April 26, 1876.
ALFRED W. STOWELL, - - - - - - February 7, 1884.

WiLriam M. Lapp, - - - - - . . TFebruary9, 1888.
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DEACONS.
A. H. BELL, - - Elected August 3, 1860); resigned January 1, 1867.
DEACONESSES,

DATE OF APPOINTMENT AND EXPIRATION OF SERVICE.

MRgs. E.T. ADAMS, - - - December 30, 1884, to June, 1887.

MRs. DELIA F. HOLLABAUGH, - December 30, 1884, to April 18, 1889.

Miss FrRaNcEs A. HoLMAN, -  December 30, 1884, to April 18, 1889.
DEACONESSES

NOW SERVING AND DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT.

MRsS. MARY A. HOLBROOK, December 30, 1884.

Mrs. J. R. SWINTON, - - - - - - December 30, 1884.
MRrs. MARY A. COOPER, - - - - - - - May 4, 1888.
MRrs. E. QUACKENBUSH, - - - - - - May 4, 1888.
Miss LYypiA A. WARREN, - - - - - - April 18, 1889.
Mgs. F. E. THAYER, - - - - - - - April 18, 1889.
MRrs. F. F. HARADON, - - - - - - - April 18, 1889.
MRs. Mary E. HARRIS, - - - - - - April 18, 1889.

Mgrs. M. GEorGE HALL, - - - - - - - April 18, 1889.
MRs. J. WILLIAMSON, - - - - - = - April 18, 1889.
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TRUSTEES

FROM RE-ORGANIZATION OF THE CHURCH AND THEIR TERMS OF OFFICE.

J. M. Blossom._ __ . e 1860 to 1861
H. A. Hogue. . e e 1860 to 1861
Chas. Hodge .-~ - o .._..----1862 to 1863
P. C. Schuyler-__ . 1862 to 1863
W. H. Tappan - . . .._---_1862 to 1863
Daniel Bradford- .- .. 1863 to 1864
E. M. Burton . . 1863 to 1864
J . H.Coueb -l 1863 to 1864
J. C. Ainsworth. .. ___________________.1860 to 1862, 1864 to 1866
M.B.Millard-___. ... 1861 to 1862, 1864 to 1866
J.D.Holman.___.__ .. 1862 to 1863, 1864 to 1866
B. F.Smith _________________ 1860 to 1861, 1863 to 1864, 1866 to 1867
O.P.S. Plummer- - . 1865 to 1866
D. W. Wakefield- .- . ____ - 1866 to 1867
W. W. Upton - - - 1869 to 1870
E. W. Haines____ .. . ..__...__1869 to 1870
W.T. Shanahan____ _____________ _________ 1868 to 1869, 1871 to 1872
W.P. Abrams. - . 1871 to 1873
Jacob Kamm . _________. 1868 to 1869, 1872 to 1881
C.C.8trong - - . 1882 to 1883
F.R.Strong - -1883 to 1884
Wm. Morton. . 1866 to 1886
W. M. Ladd - _..__..__1886 to 1888
J.B.Congle - . 1868 to 1888
W.S. Ladd-. oo ._____.1860 to 1861, 1864 to 1889
H. W. Corbett__..____.___.___ 1861 to 1865, 1866 to 1868, 1874 to 1889
Donald Macleay - . . _____.____1884 to 1889
G. M. Wells_ o 1889

M. N, SrON g - - oo e e 1889
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TRUSTEES

NOW SERVING AND HOW ORGANIZED.

The Board consists of five members.

HENrRY W, CORBETT, - - - - - = - - President.
THOMAS N. STRONG, S Secretary.
WiLLiaM S, LADD, DoNALD MACLEAY,

GEORGE M. WELLS, M. D.

TREASURER.

J. THORBURN Ross, - - - - - - Abington Building.
10614 Third Street, Room 7, Third Floor.

SABBATH SCHOOL.

WiLriam M. Lapp, - - - - - - - Superintendent.
STtepHEN P. LEg, - - - - - Assistant Superintendent.
OLiver P. McFALL, - - - - - Secretary and Treasurer.
JoHN W. P. McFALL, - - - - - - - Librarian.
Rovarn K. WARREN, - - - - - - - - Chorister.
Mgrs. WM. M. LADD, - - = « - - - - Pianist.

BETHANY MISSION.

———

ReEv. RICHARD GILPIN, - - - - - = = Chaplain.
________________________ , - - - Sunday School Superintendent.
RoBERT T. GRAHAM, - - - - - Assistant Superintendent.
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CHOIR.

The following are the names of those who have been regular mem-
bers of the choir, as far as it has been possible to ascertain:

Mr. H. B. Morse, Mpr. and Mrs. . E. Withington,
Mr. P. C. Schuyler, Mr. Henry Law,

Mr. and Mrs. J. B. Wyatt, Mr. Robert Law,

Mr. and Mrs. W. B. Mead, Mrs. E. Quackenbush,

Mr. and Mrs. S. G. Reed, Mrs. W. T. Shanahan,

Mr. and Mrs. J. H. J. Pearson, Mr. and Mrs. T. T. Struble,
‘Mr. A. H. Morgan, Mr. and Mrs. D. W. Prentice,
Mr. H. L. Hoyt, Mrs. W. B. Gilbert,

Mrs. Elijah Corbett, Mrs. D. Goodsell,

Mrs. E. G. Randal], Mrs. Lizzie Taylor,

Miss Fanny Holman, Mrs. J. M. Arthur,

Miss Ella Smith, Mrs. O. B. Bird,

Mrs. Ella Tarbell, Mrs. D. S. Tuttle,

Mr. William Wadhams, Mrs. Johnson.

ORGANISTS.—Mrs. J. B. Wyatt, Mrs. Annie Brooks, Mrs. Maria A.
Smith, Mrs. Mary H. Holbrook.

Mrs. Holbrook still presides at the Organ, and Messrs. R. K. War-
ren and P. C. Schuyler have charge of the Singing.
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Wherefore we receiving a kingdom which cannot be moved, let us have grace,
whereby we may serve God acceptably with reverence and godly fear.—HEBREWS
12:28.

THE SAN GRAEL SOCIETY.

The San Grael Society, taking its name from the charming old
legends of the Holy Cup, symbolical of Divine charity, is an association
of the young people of the church, corresponding to Christian Endeavor
Societies, which have become so general throughout the United States.

This society was organized March 17, 1884, with a membership of
thirty-five (85). By the close of the fifth year of its existence there had
been entered on its roll book one hundred and fifty-five (155) names.

The work is divided among various committees, viz. : The Advisory,
the Prayer Meeting, the Benevolent Work and Temperance, the Social
Improvement, the Welcoming, the Refreshment, and the Flower.

Prayer meetings are now held on Monday evening, except on
the third Monday of each month, when the evening is devoted to busi-
ness, literary exercises and social reunion. These meetings are held
throughout the year—discontinued only during the months of July and
August.

The San Grael Society stands ready to do its part in relieving any
case” of want made known to it. Its contributions to various causes
every year are large and show an earnest and benevolent spirit among
the members.
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The object of the Society, as stated in the constitution, is to pro-
mote ‘‘ knowledge, fellowship and Christian usefulness among the
young people.”” Itsaim and desires arefittingly embodied in its motto—
‘“‘Be thou an example of the believersin word, in conversation, in char-
ity, in spirit, in faith, in purity,”’” and it opens its arms to all strangers
and those who desire to find friends and fellow-workers in the one great

cause of the advancement of the Kingdom of Christ.

OFFICERS—SAN GRAEL SOCIETY.

THOS. N. STRONG, - - - - - - - - President.
Miss MARY K. LAMBERSON, - - - - - Vice-President.
Miss CELIA SWIGERT, - - - - - - - - Secretary.
CHas, L. GALLIEN, - - - - - - - <  Treasurer.
Miss KATE W. RANDALL, . - - - - - - Historian.
Mi1ss FLORENCE WELLS, - - - - - - - * Pianist,
WM. M. LADD, - - - - - - - - - - Elder.
CHAIRMAN ADVISORY ('OMMITTEE, - - - - THE PASTOR.

Present membership, 110.
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WOMAN'S MISSIONARY SOCIETY.

OBJECT.—To encourage missionary efforts in our own church, to
disseminate missionary intelligence, and to secure systematic contribu-
tions to missions.

MRrs. M. R. ANDREWS, - - - - . - - President.
Mgs. A. W. STOWELL, - - - - - - Vice-President.
Miss MARY K. LAMBERSON, - - - - - - Secretary.
Mgrs. M. H. HOLBROOK, - - - Corresponding Secretary.

Mrs. W. S. LADD, e . Treasurer.

Present membership, 68.
Contributions for the year ending March 12, 1889, $692.50.

WOMAN'S WORKING SOCIETY.

PRESENT OBJECT.—Creating a fund for furnishing the new church.

Mgs. H. W. CORBETT, - - - - - - - President.
MRgrs. MArY H. HOLBROOK, - - - - - - Vice-President.
Miss VIRGINIA WHITING, - - = - - - Secretary:.
Mrs. W. B. GILBERT, - - - - - - - - Treasurer.

&

THE JULIA LINDSLEY MISSION BAND.

OBJECT.—To interest the Children and youth of the church in mis
sionary work.

Miss BLANCH HAMPTON, - - - - - - - President.
Miss MARY K. LAMBERSON, - - - - . Vice-President.
HaroLD GILBERT, - - - - - - -~ - - Becretary.
Miss BERTHA COOPER, - - - - - - - Treasurer.

Present membership, 40.
Contributed during the year, $42.50.



COMMITTEES.

NEW CHURCH-BUILDING COMMITTEE.

HENRY W. CORBETT, - - - - - e - Cbairman
WiLLiAM S. LADD, GEORGE WOODWARD,
WiLLiaM M. LADD, PHaivip C. SCHUYLER,

E. QUACKENBUSH, THOMAS N. STRONG,
WILLIAM B. GILBERT, H. E. DoscH,
DONALD MACLEAY, J. THORBURN ROSS,
J. DEW. WHITING, GEORGE STOWELL,
S. P. LEE, R. K. WARREN.

CENTRAL SOCIAL COMMITTEE.

MRs. WM. R. MACKENZIE, MRs. A. G. KLOSTERMAN,
MRs. P. C. SCHUYLER, MR. A. A. MORSE,
MRs. J. R. FOSTER, Mr. H. C. CAMPBELL,

Mrs. WM. M. LADD, MRr. J. D. RoBB.
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CFFERINGS.

The Session has designated the Second Sabbath in each month for
offerings to the Boards, and various other objects, as follows:

APRIL, - . - - - - Oregon Bible Society.
MAy, - - Bethany Mission and Bethel Work.
JUNE, - - - - - - Sunday School Work.
JuLy, - - - - - - Y.M. C. A.
AvUGuUsT, - - - - - - - Freedmen.
SEPTEMBER, - - - - - - Education.
OCTOBER, - - - - - Home Missions.
NOVEMBER, - - - - - Presbyterian Alliance.
DECEMBER, - - - - - - Ministerial Relief.
JANUARY, - - - - - - Foreign Missions.
FEBRUARY, - - - - - Colleges and Academies.
MARCH, - - - - - - Church Erection.
QUARTERLY COMMUNION, - - - - Elder’s Fund.

Honor the Lord with thy substance.—PRov. 3:9.



If ye then be risen with Christ, seek those things which are above, where Christ
sitteth on theright hand of God. Set your affections on things above, not on things
on the earth.—Cor. 3:1, 2.

MEMBERS.

Persons removing from the city permanently, are expected to take
their letters, and unite promptly with the church of their choice in their
new home. Failing to do this within two years, their names will be
placed on the ‘‘Absent List,”’ unless good reasons are shown the Session
for their continuance on the ‘“Active List.”

THOSE ADDED DURING THE YEAR WILL BE FOUND IN BACK OF BOOK.

tAbrams, Mrs. Sarah L., 361 7th. Bond, Mrs. L, A., 67 N. W. Park.
Ah Ho, 14 S. Front. Bond, Miss E. E., 67 N. W, Park,
Alexander, Robt., 8 Sherman. Brunker,Wm. T., Eagle Cliff, Washington,
Andrews, Mrs. M, R., sw cor. Main and Barber, Mrs, E. 4., 307 Yamhill.
W. Park. Behrenz, B. M., 206 Hall.
Arbuckle, Miss Ellen A, 426 3d. Behrenz, Mrs. A. A., 206 Hall,
Alnslie, Mrs. Euphemia, nw cor. 6th and Borthwick, A. E., 195 7th.
Columbia. Borthwick, Mrs. A, IE,, 195 7th.
Blossom, Mrs. E. L., 42714 Third. Borthwick, Mrs. Cath, 91 N. 8th.
Burton, Mrs. R. A, se cor. 9th and B. Bradley, Mrs. Helen M., address 73 Front.

Burton, Miss Helen M., se cor.9th and B. Bradley, Mrs. Nellie B., Riverdale.

Bloomfield, Mrs. A., nw cor. 9th and Boot, Mrs. B. B,, sw cor. K and 21st.
Yambhill. Butterfield, Mrs. E. G., 167 E. Park.

Bond, Wm., 67 N. W, Park. Barcroft, Mrs. Mary, East Portland.



Bates, Mrs. L. M., nw cor. 2lst and 1.
Beno, M., nw cor. 2d and Salmon.

Brownlie, Mrs. Jennie Esther, Portland

Heights.
Brown, Mrs. Arthur J., 254 Alder,
Brown. Miss Lizzie 1., 234 Alder.
Brown, Dr. S. A, 169 Ist.
Buell, Miss Sarah, 250 Market.
Barrett, Miss Wealthy A., 230 I.
Barrett, Miss Catharine 1., 230 I,
Borchers, Mrs. A.,secor. Istand Market.

Baumgarten, Miss Sophia, San Francisco.

Black, David, East Portland.

Ballis, Wm., 215 D.

Clarke, Mrs. Lucy, cor 12th and Mill.
Caffrey, Mrs. Sarah, wife of Rev. . S,
Congle, Mrs, E. H., 230 Yamhill.
Corbett, H. W., sw cor. 5th and Taylor.

Corbett, Mrs. E. L., sw cor.5th and Taylor.

Comstock, C. B., 149 Alder.
Comstock, Mrs. M. J., 149 Alder.
Comstock, Miss Ida, 149 Alder.
Comstock, Miss 1., M , 149 Alder.
Chapman, Miss Dora, 369 10th.
Catlin, Mrs, T. A., 221 8th.
Catlin, Miss A. R., 221 8th.
Catlin, Miss Blanche, 221 8th,
Catlin, Robert, 221 8th.

Cooper, Mrs. M. A., 248 11th.
Cooper, Miss Myra, 248 11th.
Cooper, Miss Bertha, 248 11th.
Cooper, Martin L., 248 11th.
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Cooper, Fred E,, 248 11th.

Cooper, Mrs. A. B,, 210 12th.

Campbell, Angus, 69 Montgomery.
Campbell, Mrs, Mary, (9 Montgomery.
Campbell, H. C., 353 E.

Campbell, Mrs. H. C,, 333 I,

Chase, Mrs. L. A., 51 N. 15th.

Chalmers, Dr.J. M. P., 169 9th.

Cornelius, A. M., 304 Montgomery.
(Cornelius, Mrs, A, M., 304d Montgomery.
Cornelius, Miss Emma V., 301 M’tgomery.
Cornelius, Miss Lilly, 304 Montgomery.
Cornelius, Miss Nora, 304 Montgomery.
Chamberlain, F. D., 253 6th.

Crothers, Mrs. Anna Eliza, 188 G.
Chipman, Dr. M. M., 404 Turk St., S.F.Cal.
Crockatt, Miss Eliza, 31 N. 15th.

‘Cole, Mrs. C., Room 18, Reid’s Block.

Calder, Miss Violet T., 205 6th,
Christianson, Christian, 103 C.
Cardwell, Mrs. J. R., Summit Station.
Cuarran, John W, 430 4th.
Curran, Mrs. J. W., 450 4th,
DeWitt, Miss O. V., 499 E.
Dosch, H. E., 193 W, Park.
Dosch, Mrs. M. L., 193 W, Park.
DeFrance, Mrs. M. G., 388 7th.
Dunckley, Wm. H., 48 Grant.
Dunckley, Mrs. F. W., 48 Grant.
Deupree, A. C., 384 9th,

Deupree, Mrs. Nora, 384 9th.
Dunbar, Mrs. Agnes., 271 Alder.
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Dehon, Miss Elsie, 10 Hall.

Downing, Mrs. L. M., 423 Fifth.

Drysdale, Alex., East Portland.
Dinsmore, Jas. M., Amboy, Washington.
Delits, Christian, sw cor. 3d and Oak.
Derickson, R. W., Tacoma, Washington.
Dong Faiy, 14 S. Front.

Edwards, Chas. F., 71 Pine,

Fairfowl, Miss Hannah, nw cor, [9th
and F,

Foster, Mrs. Elizabeth B., se cor. Taylor
and W, Park.

Forsythe, Mrs. Margaret, 446 5th,

Farwell, Mrs. Alice J., 446 5th.

Ferris, Dr. Frank E., 235 5th.

Finlay, Miss Hattie, 131 Washington,

Finlay, John C.,131 Washington.

Fretz, Philip K., No.8, 3d floor Abington
Building,

Giltner, Mrs. M. M., 334 1si.

Gilbert, Wm. B., 149 11th.

Gilbert, Mrs. W. B,, 149 11th.

Gilbert, Harold L., 149 11th.

Gilbert, Julia Grace, 149 11th.

Gilbert, Katharine B., 149 11th,

Glasco, Mrs. Mary, 115 S 5th.

Glasco, Mrs, Harriet L., 115 8. 5th,

Gregory, Wm. M., 286 11th,

Gaston, Miss Mary W., King bet, Salmon
and W. Main. ’

Goodwin, Miss V. F, 221 11th.

Glover, Mrs. Martha, 71 Morrison.

Gebbie, John, 289 Montgomery,

Gebbie, Mrs. Annie E,, 289 Montgomery.

Graham, Robt. T., 103 N.<12th.

Graham, Mrs. Susan, 103 N. 12th.

Gibson, Henry T., ne cor 17th and Q.

Gibson, Mrs. Henry T., ne cor 17th and Q.

Gibson, James, Ogallala, Neb.

Gibson, Mrs. James, Ogallala, Neb.

Gallien, Chas. 1., 26 N. 11ith.

Godard, Mrs. Mary E., Lewiston, Idaho.

Hall, Robt. F., se cor.\WV. Main and Stout.

Hall, Mrs. Alletta T.L., se cor, W, Main
and Stout.

Hall, Wm. J., 300 Montgomery.

Hall, Mrs. S. C., 300 Montgomery.

Hall, Dr. Jerome H., 22914 1st,

Hansen, Mrs. F. M., 720 I, E. Portland.

Hensill, Mrs. M. J., 428 3d.

Holman, Rachel H., 201 Lownsdale.

Holman, Miss Frances A., 201 Lownsdale.

Holman, Miss Kate S., 201 Lownsdale.

Holbrook, Mrs. Mary H., 108 Salmon.

Hood, Mrs. Charlotte 1., 144 7th.

Hoyt, Mrs. Mary L., 133 7th,

Hoyt, Mrs. R. H,, 525 H.

Hoyt, Miss E. E., 525 H.

Hogue, Mrs. S. L., nw cor. 12th and
Washington.

Hogue, Harry W., nw cor. 12thand Wash-
ington,

Higgins, Wm. L., se cor 9th and Main.
Higgins,Mrs.Mary E,,se cor9th and Main.
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Higgins, Miss Alice, se cor 9th and Main.

Hawes, Mrs. Harriet, 167 First.

Hollabaugh, Mrs. Delia I., 175 8th.

Hollabaugh, Mrs. E, P., 175 8th.

Harker, Mrs. Sarab, 153 10th.

Harker, Miss Cassie, 453 10th.

Harker, Miss Caroline P., 433 10th.

Harker, Miss Sarah D,, 453 10th.

Hampton, Thomas, 92 Lincoln.

Hampton, Mrs. A. M,, 92 Lincoln.

Hampton, Miss May B., 92 Lincoln.

Hawthorne, Miss M. J., 255 Oth.

Hill, Miss Sarah B., 355 W. Park.

Holman, Mrs. Beulah, Molalla.

Haberly, Adolph, Theological Seminary,
San Francisco.

Hutz, Mrs. Anna, 7 S. 5th.

Hursh, Mrs. Margaret, Garden Home.

Henderson, Mrs. Mary B., nw cor. 8th and
Stark.

Holmes, Miss G., nw cor. 8th and Stark.

Hendrie, Mrs. Helen, 95 Lincoln.

Hunsaker, Mrs. A. M., 9S. 5th.

Haradon, F. F., 274 Columbia.

Haradon, Mrs, F. F,, 274 Columbia,

Hand, Mrs. Benj 1., 225 Taylor.

Harper, Wm., Gale's Creek.

Hill, Robert F., 32 Stark.

Hislop, James, Ellensburg, W. T.

Hunter, S. E., Mount Tabor.

Hamilton, David, Chicago.

Imbrie, Miss Nellie M., 263 9th.

Johnstone, Mrs. Anna, 415 3rd.

Johnstone, Miss J. L., 415 3rd.

Johnson, Mrs. Mary C., Carlton, Ogn.

Jamieson, J A., 1414 12th, East Portland,

Kamm, Jacob, sw cor, 12th and Main.

Kamm, Mrs.C. A.,swcor, 12th and Main.

Kamm, Charles T, sw cor. 12th and Main.

Klosterman, Mrs, Josephine, sw cor. 2nd
and Hall.

Kerron, Mrs. Julia H., 215 Yamhill.

Kennard, Jas., ne cor. Main and 9th.

Karrick, S. M., 107 5th.

Kesling, Miss Annie, nw cor. 17th and L,

Ladd, Wm. 8,,293 6th,

Ladd, Mrs. Caroline A., 293, 6th.

Ladd, Wm. M,, sw cor. Mainand W. Park.

Ladd, Mrs. Mary L., sw cor. Main and
W, Park.

Lee, Stephen P., 290 11th.

Lee, Mrs. Mary V., 290 11th.

Lee, Charles H., 4th and Townsend, S. F,

Lee, Harry D., 200 11th.

Lindsley, Mrs. Julia W., Oakland, (C'al.

Lindsley, Miss Emily M., Oakland, Cal.

Lindsley, Carleton T,, Oakland, Cal.

Labbe, Mrs. Louise E., 15 N. 11th,

Labbe, Mrs. E, T., 215 D.

Labbe, Edward B., 215 D.

Labbe, Paul, 21 N. W, Park.

Labbe, Mrs. Marie Augusta, 21 N.W. Park.

Lamberson, Mrs. Delia B., 250 Market.

Lamberson, Miss Mary K., 250 Market.
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Lamberson, Lewis H., 250 Market.

Lamberson, Miss Cornelia, 250 Market.

La Rue, Mrs. Sarah A., 308 East Park.

Loutitt, Mrs. R. L., 209 N. 14th.

Livingstone, Robert, 46 N, 20th.

Livingstone, Mrs. B., 46 N, 20th.

Lane, August, 230 1.

Morse, Mrs, Harriet Newell, 211 12th,

Morse, Miss Jdugenia, 211 12th.

Morse, Miss Emma C., 211 12th.

Millard, Mrs. Mary, 211 12th.

Millard, Mrs. Jessie, ne cor.
Harrison.

Mann, Mrs. Anna M. E,, 441 3rd,

Mann, Erasmus, 30 N, 7th.

Mann, Mrs. Clara A, 30 N, 7th.

Mann, Thomas, 30 S. Front.

Macleay, Donald, 189 Lownsdale.

Macleay, Kenneth, 187 Yamhill.

Mooney, G. A., 347 9th.

Mooney, Miss E. H., 347 9th.

Mallory, Mrs. Anna B., sw cor Main and
Stout.

Maclincy, Miss Celia, 105 Washington.

Murton, H. F., 83 N 13th.

Murton, Clarence C., 83 N 13tk

Murton, Geo. T., 83 N 13th.

Murch, Miss Jessie, 189 Pacific.

Murch, Miss Lucy D., 189 Pacific.

McKinnell, Dr. H. 81 Main.

Merwin, Mrs. Lucy S.,71 N, 19th.

Morrow, Wm., Sellwood.

7th and

Morrow, Mrs. Rosetia, Sellwood.

MacBeth, Wm,, 263 9th,

MacBeth, Mrs, J., 263 9th,

MacBeth, Miss Susan L., Mt, Idaho, [. 1.

MacConnell, Miss Christina, 155 N. 15th.

McBride, S. B., Portland Heights.

McBride, Mrs. A. J., Portland Heights.

McBride, Miss Ella K., Portland Heights.

McFall, Mrs, S, P, 515 I0,

McFall, Miss S, B, 315 Ie,

MacKenzie, A., Hubbard, Ogn.

McKenzie, Archibald, 87 N. 13th.

McKenzie, Mrs. A., 87 N. 13th.

Mackenzie, Wm. R., 320 H.

Mackenzie, Mrs. R., 329 H.

Monteith, Mrs. Clara, 49 N. 13th.

Morse, Amos A., cor.2d and Weidler, East
Portland.

Macdonald, Edward P., Pullman Palace
Car Co., Ash St. Dock.

McKean, Charles A., 230 I,

Macmaster, Wm., 40 2nd.

Milne, Miss Annie, {6 N. 20th.

Mauzey, Mrs. T. A., 246 3rd.

McNeill, Finlay, 161 Yamhill.

MeceNeill, Mrs. Finlay, 161 Yamhill.

McNeill, Miss Alice, 161 Yamhill.

McNeill, Miss Anna, 161 Yamhill,

McDonald, Donald, 151 3rd.

Morrison, Peter, Fisher’s Landing, W. T.

Nevison, Mrs. Mary, sw cor. 6th and
Montgomery.
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Nevison, Miss Mary, sw cor. 6th and
Montgomery.

Nicol, Mrs, Mary Ann, 107 N. W, Park.

Nichols, Dr. A, S., 233 8th.

Newman, Geo, T., 181 E, Park.

Newbury, Mrs. A., 275 Montgomery.

QOakley, Mrs. E. C,, uw cor. N. 10th and
Stark.

Ogden, H. M,, 24 S, First.

Ogden, Mrs. H. M., 34 S. First.

Olsen, Chas. M., 94 N. E. Park.

Olsen, Mrs. Chas. M., 94 N. E. Park.

Parrott, Miss Josie L., cor. 2nd and Mill.

Protzman, Mrs. Kate D., sw cor. B and
W. Park.

Protzman, Miss Eva, sw cor. B. and W.
Park.

Platt, Percival, Port Townsend, W, T,

Prehn, Dr. C. T., 666 I, East Portland.

Phipps, Claire, 105 Washington.

Ploegstra, August, 144 Pacific.

Peshall, Miss Frances J.,33N. W, Park.,

Peshall, Miss Mary, 7 C.

Philips, David, sw cor. 6th and Columbia.

Plummer, Geo. H., Portland Academy.

Pihl, Olaf, Cascade Locks.

Quackenbush, Edward, 249 11th.

Quackenbush, Mrs, Anna C., 249 11th.

Quackenbush, Edward H., 249 11th,

Quigley, Miss M. E , New York.

Reid, Mrs. Walter A., 115 C.

Reid, Mrs. Agnes, 31 N. 15th.

Robb, Bamford, 261 11th,

Robb, Miss Abbic L., 26! 11th.

Robb, Bamford A., 251 11th,

Robb, J. D., 195 7th,

Robb, Mrs. J. D., 195 7th.

Russcll, Lewis, Oalk Club.

Randall, Mrs. Ay, 253 (th,

Randall, Miss Minnie G., 253 t(th.

Randall, Miss Kate W.,, 233 (th,

Ross, J. Thorburn, 250 Market.

Rogers, Samuel, Gaines, near S, 10th.

Rogers, Walter, Gaines, near S, 10th.

Rogers, James, Gaines, near S, 10th.

Rupert, Mrs. Delia, sw cor. 6th and Alder.
room 27,

Robertson, Andrew, 149 5th.

Rush, Win. B..__, se cor. Front and Sherinan.

Robertson, Thos., 33 Pine.

Reuter, Edward J., 230 1.

Richards, Fred H., Albina.

Roycroft, Mrs. Mary 1., 9ih near K, E. P.

Smith, Mrs. John, 305 First.

Stephenson, Mrs. G. M., Vaucouver, Wash.

Strong, Thos. N., 180 Pacitic,

Strong, Mrs. Mary E., 189 Pacific.

Schuyler, Mrs. Lucy S., 45 King.

Schuyler, Miss Genevieve, 45 King.

Stroud, Mrs. A, J., 720 I, East Portland.

Stroud, Miss Gertrude A,720 I, E. Portland.

Stroud, Miss Beneta, 720 I, East Portland.

Strange, Win., Clackamas.

Strange, Mrs. Wm.,, Clackamas.
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Stowell, Geo., ne cor, Corbett and Curry.

Stowell, Mrs. Jeanctte, ne cor. Corbett
and Curry,

Stowell, Ben. LeRoy, ne cor. Corbett and
Curry. ,

Stowell, A. W ., 275 Clay.

Stowell, Mrs. K, B,, 275 Clay.

Stowell, Blandina E,, 275 Clay.

Stowell, John A,, 336 12th.

Stowell, Miss Margaret, 336 12th,

Stowell, Miss Leathe, 336 12th.

Stokes, Wm. C,, 212 7th.

Swinton, J. R., 363 11th.

Swinton, Mrs. S, M., 363 11th.

Seal, Chas. F., sw cor. Montgomery and
W. Park.

Simms, Chas. B., 333 10th.

Smith, Mrs. Hannaly M., 101 10th.

Straugh, Mrs. Anna N., ne cor. 1st and
Harrison.

Swigert, Miss Celia 333 E.

Stephenson, Mrs. David, se cor, 2lst and 1.

Schwichtenberg, Otto H. A., 312 Jefferson.

Schwichtenberg, Hugo E. L., 312 Jefferson.

Snodgrass, W.J.,nw cor. Main and 11th.

Snodgrass, Mrs. W. J., nw cor. Main and
11th,

Stevens, Dr, Jas. E., 8814 Washington.

Slater, Jas., Quimby House.

Stump, Mrs. Flora T., cor. Clay and Victo-
ria, East Portland.

Thurston, Mrs, Henrietta, Springfield, Or.

Thompson, J. B,, 346 11th.

Thompson, Mrs, M. L., 346 11th,

Thayer, Mrs., Mildred 1., address, ne cor.
1st and Pine, up stairs.

Taylor, Mrs. Sarah, 275 Montgomery.

Tyndall, Thos., Good Samaritan Hospital.

Tuttle, Mrs. Gertrude M., se cor. 17th and
D,

Thompson, Jas. M., Brookfield, W.T.

Tinkham, Miss L. F.; Quimby House.

Valentine, J. H., ne cor. 20th and J.

Valentine, Mrs. Blandina F. L., nc cor.
20th and J.

Vollum, Geo. W., East Portland.

Vollum, Mrs. Frances, East Portland.

Williamson, John, 83 N. 13th.

Williamson, Mrs. S., 83 N. 13th.

Weatherford, Mrs, M., 423 5th.

Witherell, J. R., 114 Madison.

Witherell, Mrs. M. J., 114 Madison.

Wilson Mus. Elizabeth T., 201 12th.

Whiting, J. D,, nw cor. 4th and Madison.

Whiting, Miss Virginia, nw cor. 4th and
Madison.

Whiting, A.S., 208 13th.

wilbur, R. M., 58 N. 19th.

Wilbur, Mrs. I, M., 5S N, 19th.

Warren, R. K., 134 Montgomery.

Warren, Mrs. A. L., 134 Montgomery.

Warren, Miss Lydia A., 131 Montgomery.

Woodward, Mrs. Ellen M., 175 Alder.

Wells, Dr. G. M., 221 11th.



Wells, Miss Florence, 221 11th.
Wells, Miss Emma L., 221 11th.
Wells, W, Bittle, 221 11th.
Wells, Frank M., 221 11th.
Wells, John M,, 221 11th.
Wells, Mrs. Alice L., 407 3rd.
Wells, Miss Alice L., 407 3rd.
Witherell, Mrs. M. B., 369 10th.
Witherell, Jessie C., 369 10th.

3D

Warner, J. G., cor, 17th and T., E. Portl'd.
Warner, Mrs. Flora, cor. 17th and T, E. P.
Wheeler, Mrs, Josie D., 205 6th.

Waddell, Mrs., Josie Buchanan.

Watt, Robert, East Portland.

Woods, G. P. I., Children’s Home.

Woods, Mrs. Mary A., Children’s Home.
Young, Miss Edith J., 157 N, 15th.

Number in foregoimg list, 394,



ABSENT LIST.

The addresses of the following persons are unknown, or they are
absent from the city and have not communicated with the Session
for two years or more. If they are not heard from during the year, they
will be placed upon the suspehded list:

Anderson, Jessie
Armstrong, Sarah J.
Borthwick,Miss Christine R,
Brownell, Abbie Ann
Blackwood, Orel
Burns, John Henry
Burns, Mary, wife of
Brown, Matilda A.
Carter, C. M.

Carter, Mary, wife of
Cooper, Arthur J,
Covert, Mrs. M. 1.
Cox, Susan I.
Cussiter, George
Charles, John
Cottrell, Hatiie J.
Cook, Thomas
Doland, Fred W.
Davis, Griffith
Downie, Richard

Dobson, Caroline
Davidson, Mary E.
Eaton, Rose K.
Farnsworth, Katie M.
Fairweather, Matilda
Freeman, J.

Fellows, Chas.

Gould, Horace N.
Grubbs, Lida E.
Hawley, Edward A.
Hatch, Z. J.

Hyer, John

Howes, Mrs. T. B.
Hamilton, Mrs. Alletta
Hamilton, Mrs. Clara
Hotaling, Mrs. Catherine C.
Hughes, James

Hughes, Maggie, wife of
Holmes, James

Hope, Robert,
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Johnson, Mrs. Elizabeth Muldren, Mrs. Catherine D.
Ketcham, J. N. Nickerson, Nelson
Ketcham, Rachel, wife of Nelson, Josie.
Larsen, Hans Porter, Geo. E.
Lantheacum, Chas. A. Porteous, David
Lang, Susan Reid, John J.
Mitchell, Mrs. Martha E. Ross, Mrs. Lucy
Mitchell, Miss Jessie B. Regner, Mrs. Julia
Mann, George Regner, Joseph D,
Martin, Roderick Richards, Fred H.
Myers, Augustus E. Smith, Mrs. Carrie
Maxwell, John Sylvester, Mrs. Elizabeth
‘Maxwell, Mrs. Alexandria, Sprague, Mrs. Maive H.
wife of

Spencer, Mrs. Christina
Morrow, John

Mooney, John

May, Richard

McFadden, Duane W.
McPherson, Alexander
McPherson, Mrs, Nancy J.
McKay, Mrs. Margaret E.
McPhalo, Archibald

Shipley, Leroy S.

Thane, Chas. H.
Thornton,J. D.

Wandtke, Mrs. Amelia
Wells, Samuel S,

‘Warren, Cecelia

Wilson, Mrs. Katherine A.

SUMMARY.
Membership APril ISt, 1880, .c.cciieuernnmeeieereenereearoenereueeemesisensorss  sescsnsressassnssssssnsessnsesnnsas 34
AQACA SINCR .t cuietvvecctrrriecetnenicrouteeieeenncetsrantereenrosesannctette s asesss omnmsnsnerassssns tensassas.asse o 50
Total active membership July 10th, I889.......ccccieeeiiiriieeeeieerereivenereneieeiasnneerenesmesnssnssens 441
Absent List......cccceeveveenmeecnenenaes Cerrereeneeescnrnnsnnnanse sasn rerasssins aaranns veesssesereeseietirncnures sonseres 82

1€ 2% o 10 S 0 ) & 1 IS 526



Not forsaking the assembling of ourselves together, as the manner of some is;
but exhorting one another; and so much the more, as ye see the day approaching.—
HEBREWS 10: 25.

CHURCH CALENDAR.

SABBATH SERVICES.

PREACHING, - - - - - - - l1la. m.and 7:30p. m.
SABBATH SCHOOL, - - : : - - - 12:30p. m.
BETHANY MISSION SCHOOL, corner Third and D streets, - 3:30 p. m.

COMMUNION AND RECEPTION OF NEW MEMBERS, first Sabbaths of Janu-
. ary, April, July and October.

OTHER MEETINGS.

GENERAL PRAYER MEETING, Thursdays, at - - - 7:30p.
LADIES' PRAYER MEETING, Fridays, at - - - - 2:30p.

SAN GRAEL SOCIETY PRAYER MEETING, First, Second and Fourth
Mondays of each Month, at - - - - - 7:30p.

SAN GRAEL SOCIETY SOCIAL AND BUSINESS MEETING, Third
Monday of each Month, at - - - - - 7:30np.

MISSIONARY CONCERT, Second Thursday of each Month, at 7:30Dp.
WOMAN'S MISSIONARY SOCIETY, Second Tuesday of each Month. at 2 : 30 p.
WOMAN'S WORKING SOCIETY, First Wednesday of each Month, at 2:30 p.
JULIA LINDSLEY MISSION BAND, Third Sabbath of each Month, at 3:30 p.
SESSION MEETING, Second Wednesday of each Month, at - - 7:30D.
Church Receptions, at intervals of six weeks from October to May, inclusive.

2

2

:

BB EBBRE

All Evening Services fifteen minutes later from May 1st to October 1st.
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STRANGERS ALWAYS WELCOME.

GENERAL NOTICES.

The Pastor may usually be found at the Manse, 254 Alder street,
from 1 to 2 p. m. daily, and on Wednesday evenings.

The Session will meet any Thursday evening at the close of the
prayer meeting to receive new members or to converse with inquirers.

Strangers are always welcome, and are cordially invited to make
themselves known to the Pastor at the close of any service, and to iden-
tify themselves with us.

Applications for sittings may be made to the Treasurer, Mr. J. Thor-
burn Ross, Room 7, third floor, Abington building.

Applications for hymn books may be made to Mr. E. Quackenbush,
49 Stark street.

Members of the congregation are requested to inform the Pastor
promptly of the addresses of strangers, or of any cases of illness or
trouble that may come to their knowledge.

A Calendar is printed and distributed each week giving information
as to all services to be held that week. Notices for this Calendar must
be left at the Manse not later than Friday noon. Notices not relating
to church work must be handed in in time for action of Session Thurs-
day evening. Please do not ask the Pastor to read notices.



“He that overcometh, the same shall be clothed in white raiment;
and I will not blot out his name out of the boolk of life,
butIwill confess his name before my Father,
and before his angels,”

U Wemoriam.

JOHN B. CONGLE, Died Hpril 8th, 1888, aged 70.

SMITH M. HENSILL, Died Jan. 8th, 1889, aged 73.

“And I heard a voice from heaven saying unto me, Write,
Blessed are the dead which die in the Lord from henceforth: Yea,
saith the Spirit, that they may rest from their labours; and their
works do follow them.”
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RECEIVED AT THE APRIL COMMUNION, 1889.

ON CONFESSION OF FAITH.

Burton, Miss Maria L., se cor. 9th and B.
Higgins, Miss Harriette S., se cor. 9th and Main.
Higgins, Miss Helen C., se cor. 9th and Main.
Hirschberger, Hans, traveling.

Jones, Geo. W ., 125 Alder.

Morton, Wm., 255 9th.

Morton, Mrs. Celeste P., wife, 255 9th.
Miller, Miss Iva M., 255 Montgomery.
Peterson, Miss Anna C., 46 N. 20th.

Patten, J. Edgar, 80 College.

Sanford, Mrs. Ella E,, 131 Washington.
Wallace, Frank, sw cor. 2d and F.

BY LETTER.

Bettes, Mrs. Esther E., address 73 Front, from Trinity Episcopal Church, Portland.
Dehon, Miss Silva, 10 Hall, - {rom First Presbyterian Church, Stillwater, Minn..
Gebbie, James, 289 Montgomery, from Knox Presbyterian Church, Maentreal, Canada.
Hall, Mrs. May G., wife M. G., ne cor. 17th and C, from Second Preébyterian Churcp,

Springfield, Ill.
Harris, Mrs. Mary E, 253 6th, - - from Congregational Church, Ripon, Wis.
Harris, Miss Kate, 2533 6th, - from Congregational Church, Whitewater, Wis,
Harper, Mrs. Mary, 128Y4 First, - - - from St. Paul's M. E. Church, Portland.
McIntosh, Robert, 354J.,, - - from St. John’s Presbyterian Church, Portland.
McIntosh, Mrs, Matilda C., wife,354J, ¢ * ¢ s s b

Patten, Mrs. Erva D., wife J. Edgar, 80 College, from First Presbyterian Church, Le
Seur, Minnesota.

Wyatt, Jas. B., 230 Yamhill, S Letter from this Church returned
Wryatt, Mrs. Margaret F., wife, 230 Yamhill, - ‘e o s L s
Wyatt, J. Congle, 230 Yamhill, - - - . - ¢« ‘¢ e s “



RECEIVED AT THE JULY COMMUNION, 1889.

ON CONFESSION OF FAITH.

Blake, Miss Loretta, 441 3d.

Chalmers, Mrs,. Lillie C., wife J. M. P., 163 9th.

Klingel, Miss Wilhelmina, Abington Building, Room 6 fourth tloor,
Mooney, Mrs, Mary. S., wife G. A., 317 9th.

Oakley, Roy F., 3 N. 10t,h.

Pollock, Robert, 263 Ist.

Quackenbush, Fred, 219 11th,

Stewart, William, 65 N. 10th.

BY LETTER.

Anderson, William, 147 Lownsdale, from Scotch Presbyterian Church, Chicago, Ill.
Anderson, Mrs, Margery, wife, 147 Lownsdale, - from Scotch Free Church, Stirling,
Anderson, Miss Mary, 147 Lownsdale, - - 4 L “ 6 ¢

Anderson, William, 147 Lownsdale, from Scotch Presbyterian Church, Chicago, Ill.
Denman, Herbert, S. P. R. R,, Ticket Office, from First Pres. Church, Coshocton, O.
Forsyth,John M.,271 N.14th, from Third Ref. Covenanting Church, Philadelphia, Pa.
Low, William, 68 N. 7th, from Westminster Presbyterian Church, Sacramento, Cal.

Low, Mrs. Marvaret WlIe, 68 N. 7th, « “ ¢ “ “
Mason Mrs Hannah, wife W, S., 453 I, from Calvary Presbyterian Church Portland.
McDowell Samuel W., 72 Oak - from Cumberland Presbyterian Church, Salem.

1Morse, Mrs. Ellen K., wife A. A, 24 and Weidler, East Portland, from First Presby-
terian Church, Rockfoxd Ill

Mors:é_,‘ Wallace W., Zd and Weldler East Portland from First Presbyterian Chureh,
' Rockford, Ill.

Smyth, Sydney, Abington Building, from First Presbyterién Church, Toledo, Ohio.

Tuttle, Mrs. Kate A., wife B. B., sw cor. 10th and Morrison, from Calvary Presby-
terian Church, Portland.

Wallace, Hugh W., sw cor. 19th and K, from Westminstier Presbyterian Church
Detroit, Mich. : :

Wallace, Mrs. C‘atherine E., wife, trom Westminster Presbyterian Church, Detroit,
Mich.

Warner, Robert L., 17th and T, East Portland, from Grace M. E. Church Portland.
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RESERVED
For names of members received at the Communion in October,
1889%.

LIST WILL BE FURNISHED.
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RESERVED
For names of members received at the Communion in January,

1890.

LIST WILL BE FURNISHED.
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ERRATA.

Page 16—'‘Church Extension’ should read ‘‘Church Erection.”
Page 22—Insert the name of “R. K. Warren'’ as a member of the Choir.

Page 26— Insert the name of ‘‘A. W. Stowell’”’ as a member of the Build-
ing Committee.

Page 27—‘Elder’s Fund” should read ‘‘Session Fund.”
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